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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the
registerad office of the Company, 242-A, Anand Road, Upper Mall, Lahore on Thursday
October 28, 2021 at 10:30 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1

2

Lahore
October 08, 2021

NOTES:

Ta confirm the minutes of Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2020.

To receive consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for
the vear ended 30" June 2021 together with the Directors and Auditors Report
therean.

To appoint statutory auditers for the year ending 30™ June 2022 and to fix their
remuneration,

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

. The members register will remain closed from October 22, 2021 to October 28,

2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at Share Registrar Office, Corplink
iPrivate) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the close
of business on 21 October 2020 will be entertained.

. A member aligible to attend and veote at this meeting may appeint another member

as proxy to attend and wote in the meeting. Proxies in order ta be effactive must he
received by the company at the registered office not later than 48 hours before the
time for holding meeting.

Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting,
must bring his/her ariginal CMIC or Passport, Account and participant’s 1.0 numbers,
to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy must enclose and attested copy of
hisfher CTNIC or Passport, Representatives of corporate members should bring the
usual documents required for such purpose, The account/sub account holders of
CDC will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 of 2000
dated January 26, 2000 issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Pursuant to Section 132(2) of the Companies Act 2017, if the Company receives
consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at



geographical location, to participate in the meeting through videc conference at
lrast 7 days pricr to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

In accordance with the provisions of section 223 and 237 of the Companies Act,
2017, the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended on June
20, 3021 ars available on the Company’s website (www.icctextiles.com.pk).

. Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change in address, il any o
the Company's Share Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial, Model Tawn, Lahore.

. Al shareholders who had not yet submitted the wvalid copies of CNIC, NTN
certificate(s) and |BAN are requested to send the same to the Share Registrar.
Shareholders of the Company who holds shares in scrip-less form on Central
Depositary Company of Pakistan Ltd. [CDC) are requested to update their IBAMN
details directly to their CDC participant (brokers)/CDC) Investor Account Services.

All possible safety measures shall be taken in respect of COVID-19 and relevant
S0OPs shall be strictly followed including checking of temperature, wearing of face
masks, use of hand sanitizer and maintenance of proper soclal/physical distance. All
members attending the meeting are reguested and expected to cooperate in this
respect.

. As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing company shall be
requirad to replace its physical shares with bock-entry form in a manner as may be
specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period not
exceeding four year from the commence of this Act i.e., May 30, 2017. The
Sharshaolders having physical shareholding may open CDC Sub-account with any of
the broker or investor account directly with CDC to place their physical share into
scripless form.



ICC Industries Limited
(Formerly 1CC Testiles Limited )

CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW REPORT ON BOARD PERFORMANCE

ICC Industrias Limited (“the Company”) has a seven member Beard of
Directors (“the Board”) and members with vast experience and diversified
knowledge required for an effective decision making process,

The board together with its committees was fully involved in policy and
decision making process.

The Composition of the Board and its committees are in accordance with
the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governancel Regulations, 2019, and its duties, obligations,
responsibilities and rights are as defined therain,

Curing the financial year 2021 the BOD met 8 times. All its members are
committad to serve the company with the same zeal, while taking into
consideration all materiel facis, information and circumstances in a
manner to ensure that appropriate decisions.

The Board has developed a mechanism for annual evaluation of Board's
own performanca. in compliance with the provisions of Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance] Regulations 2019, For the year ended
June 30, 2021 the Board's cverall performance and effectiveness has
been found satisfactory and both executive and non exacutive directors
have been fully involved in important decision making.

LAHORE: PERVAIZ 5. SIDDICI
October 08, 2021 Chairman




ICC Industires Limited

{Formerly ICC Textiles Limited )

Directors’ report to the members

Orn behzlf of the board of directors, we take pleasure in presenting the audited financial
statermants of the company pertaining to the financizl year ended on June 30, 2021,

Financial Highlights

The company suffered an after tax loss of As.3B.925 million and registered a revenue of
Fs. 9.887 million as against an after tax loss of Rs. 1.561 million and revenue of Rs.
33.B11 million in the preceding period.

Rupees
« Rewvenue 9,987,070
= Gross profit 1,148,783
= Operating loss 25,339,535
« Finance Cost 60,975,449
s« Change in fair value of investment property 80,100,000
« Loss after tax 38,925,133
s Accumulated losses 758,622,288
o Loss par share 1.30

Period under Review

The tollowing transactions | factors influenced the company’s financial position and
performance  during this period:

« The company's financials were negatively impacted during the year, due to the
spread of the deadly covid19 global epidemic resulting in social and business
lockdowns, having far reaching viability adverse consequences in almost all
sphares of business activity, This impacted our rental business which faced a
slowdown and partial vacancy of our area available for renting out. Thus
company's revenue, reduced to Rs, 9.987 million ( 2020: As. 33.811 million).

+ Finence cost reduced to Rs. 60.975 million from Rs., 79.287 in 2020 mainly due
to conversion of some interest bearing loans from directors into interest free
loans in the last guarter of financial year ending on June 30, 2020,

» Positive change in fair value of the investment property was Rs. 50.100 million
(2020: Rs. 2.5639 million), mainly due tc boom in real estate prices attributed to
construction package announced by the Govermmment., The same has been
accountad for as income during the year.

« The company has disposed off assets from property, plant and eqguipment and
non-current gssets held for sale having written down value of Hs. 3.748 million
{2020: Rs. 4.721 million)



Future Strategy and Prospects

While the business was somewhat affected in 2020 due to the first phase of Covid19
pandemic, Pakistan was by and large lucky to have escaped the huge damage suffered by
many other countries. Howewver, with the arrival of the third wave of covid earlier this
year, once again the country was confronted with partial smart lockdowns, and the
business and social activity in Pakistan was adversely affected. In our case there was a
substantial reduction in our rental business activity thus reducing our revenua,

The situation seems to have much improved since September as the government has
removed most covid related restrictions, A number of new prospective tenants are
approaching us and hopefully we will be able to rent out substantial portion of our
available space soon.

While at the macro level, the country still is facing huge economic issues such as high
inflation and energy circular debt, we are wilnessing growth in business activity in a
number ot sectors.

Contingencies and commitments

Mo material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
hawve occurred between the end of the financial year to which the statement of financial
position relates and the date of Directors’ Report, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

Qutstanding Statutory Dues
There are no outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and
charges which are outstanding as on June 30, 2021 except for those disclosed in the

financial statemeants.
Corporate Social Responsibility

Your company is a responsible corporate citizen and fully recognizes its responsibility
towards community, employees and environment.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

In crder tc follow the SECF code of corporate governance, the following statements are
given;

Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its
state of alfzirs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in eguity.

Books of Accounts
Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

Accounting Policies
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.



International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
International Financial Reparting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of the financial statements.

Internal Control System
Tha system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitared,

Going Concern

Without qualifying their opinion, Company’'s auditors, in their report, have drawn your
attention to note 1.2 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company's
current liahilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 269.537 million, and its accumulated
losses stood at Rs. 759.522 millien. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a
Joing concern.

These financial statements have, however, been prepared on going concern basis on the
grounds that the company will be able to achieve satisfactory levels of profitability in the
future based on plan drawn up by the management for this purpose and bringing its
liabilities to serviceable levels and awvailability of the adequate working capital from its
lenders and sponsors.

To substantizte its going concern assumption the directors had implemented a plan to
consolidate the company’s pasition by repaying the banks’ borrowings through sponsors’
loans and sale of inefficient textile machinery and renting out vacant buildings to generate
revenue. Moreover, the company has teken steps mentioned in note 1.2 { iii — vii } to the
fimancial statements.

Corporate Governance _
There has been nc material departure from the best practices of corporate gevernance, as
detailed in the listing regulations of stock exchanges.

Operating and Financial Data
Key operating and financial data of last six years is 85 under:

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

{ Ra. in million }

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Rovenue @
Textiles {Rs.] A43.604 21.974 0.191 0.933 a
- Rental (Rs.) 9.970 15.363 23.462 33,811
Met profit/lloss) after tax-Rs. (211.063) 4,739 16.034 4,393 {1.661)
Fixed assats (Rs.) 676.842 242,183 13.454 12.296 8.1604

Investment proparty - Rs. 620.360 Bda.020 944,348 462,419

Retained earnings J

[Accumulated Losses) - Rs. (816.970 (787.600) (741.871) (730.220) (724.273)
Current ratio 0.21411 0.28:1 0.36:1 0.22:1 0.16:1
Share breakup value - Rs. D.22 3.B7 4.44 4. 74 4,81
Earnings per share - Rs. {7.04) 2,16 0.53 .15 (005}

Dividend Mil il il Wil il

2021

o
3.887

138.925)
6.905
1,012.618

(759.522)
0.74:
3.60
{1.30)

Mil



Staff Retirement Benefits
Value of unfunded gratuity scheme, based on actuarial valuation, at the period end was Rs,
31.706 million (2020: Rs. 33.445 millien).

Board and Committees Meetings
During the year July 2020 to June 2021, Eight meetings of the Beoard of Directors,
Seven meetings ot audit committee and One meeting of HR & R committee wers held.
Attendances by the Directars were as follows:

Name of Directars Attendance Remarks

Board of Directors

Mr. Javaid 5. Siddigi 8
Mr. Pervaiz 5. Siddigi a
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid Siddigi 5
Mr. Salman Javaid Siddigi 8
Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi 8
Mr. Adnan Javaid Siddigi 1 Resigned from Board on 23.04,2021
Mr. Arsalan Javaid Siddigi 3 Resigned from Board on 07.06.2021
Wir. Arif Mahmud Khan 1 Appointed as director on 23.04,.2021
MWr., Naveed Hashim Rizvi . Appointed as director on 09.08.2021
Audit Committee
Mr, Arif Mahmud Khan - Appeinted as Chairman of committes on
09.06.2021
Mir. Pervaiz S, Siddigi 7
Mr, Salman Javaid Siddigi 7
Mrs.Fauzia Javaid Siddigi 7 Cease to be a member of committes on
09.06.2021
HR & R Committee
Mr. Maveed Hashim Rizvi - Appointed as chairman of committes on
09.06.2021
Mr. Pervaiz 5. Siddigi 1
Mr. Javaid 5. Siddigi 1 Cease to be a member of committee on
09.06.2021
Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi 1

Pattern of Shareholding
The Patiern of shareholding as required by the Code of Corporate Governance is
attached with this report.

Trading of Company Shares
During the financial year, there was no trading in shares of the company by Directors,
Company Secretary, CEOQ, CFO and Executives of the Company {including their spouses
and minor children).

Audit Committee
The Audit Commitlee comprises 3 members, of whom 1 is Independent Director and 2
are non-executive directors.



HR And Remuneration Committee
The HR and Remuneration Committee comprise 3 members, of wham 1 is Indepandent
Director and 2 are non-executive directors.

Auditors

fs Grant Thormton Anjurm Rahman, Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion
of 33° Annual General Meeting. They have expressed their willingness for
reappointment. The Audit Committes has recammended their reappaintment.

Dividend

Considering the results for the vear, the board is not recommending disbursement of
any dividend for the period ended June 30, 2021,

Acknowledgement
Finally, the directors would like to record their appreciation for the continued
commitment and hard wark being carried cut by the employees of the company.

For and on beshalf of
the Board of Directors

Qs |

A —}
LAHORE: SALMAN JAVAID SIDDIQI JAVAID S. SIDDICI
Qctober 08, 2021 Director Chief Executive Qfficer
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ICC Industires Limited

(Formerly ICC Textiles Limited )

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

Mame of Company: ICC Industries Limited
Year Ending @ June 30, 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the
following manner:

1. The total number ot directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: 51
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

. Category MNames
Independent Directors | Mr. Naveed Hashim Rizvi Mr. Arif Mahmud Khan
Executive Director Mr. Javaid 5. Siddiqgi -
Mon-Executive Mr. Pervaiz 5. Siddigi Mr. Salman Javaid Siddigi
Directors Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi
Female Director Mrs, Fauzia Javaid

3. The Board comprises of minimum number of members which is seven (7).
Requirement of independent directors are higher of two (2] or one third of The
Board. The fraction of 0.33 for independent directors has not been rounded up
as onae (1), due to the reason that, considering nature and volume of company’s
husiness, the existing independent directars with reguisite skills and knowledge
are sufficient to take independent decisions for the company.

4. The dircctors have confirmad that none of them is serving as a director on more
than seven listed companies, including this company.

5. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures,

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant pelicies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete
record of particulars of significant policies along with their date of approvad or
updating is maintained by the Company.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters nave been taken by board/sharehclders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.



8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the chairman and, in his
absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has
complisd with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of board.

e

The Board have & formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

10.0ne director, Mr. Salman Javaid Siddigi has completed his directors training
program, wherzas two directors i.e Mr. Javaid S. Siddigi and Mr. Pervaiz S.
Siddigi are exempt from the requirements of the directors training program. One
more director, could not camplete the directors training program to meet CCG
requirement of 75% of directors, attributed to COVID18. The Board will arrange
directors training program for remaining directors by June 30, 2022,

11.The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and head of internal audit, inciuding their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
regulations.

12.Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Cfficer duly endorsed the financial
statemenmts before approval of the board.

13.The board has formed committeées comprising of members given below:

al Audit Committee

1. Mr. Arif Mahmud Khan - Chairman/Member
2. Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddigi - Memhber
3. Mr. Salman 5. Siddigi - Member

[+ HR & Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Navead Hashim Rizvi- Chairman/Member
2. Mr. Pervaiz S, Siddigi - Member
3. Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi - Member

14.The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance.

16.The frequency of meetings (guarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committee were
as per following :

a)  Audit Committee - 07 meetings
bl HR & Hemuneration Committee - 01 meeting

16.The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the

policies and procedures of the company,

17.The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been
given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAF
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their



partners are in compliance with Internaticnal Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of sthics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parants, dependent and nen-dependent children) of the chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the company.

18.The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these
regulations or any other regulatory reguirement and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard,

19.We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of
the Regulations have been complied with.

20.0ne more director could not complete the directars training program to meet
CCG requirement of 75% of directors, attributed to COVID19. The Board will
arrange training program for remaining directors by June 30, 2022,

8 ﬁ}f

LAHORE: SALMAN JAVAID SIDDICI JAVAID S, SIDDIGI
October 08, 2021 Director Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE $TATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
{CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Complianee with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulanons) prepared by the Roard of Directors of 1CC Industrics Limited {the Company) for the
vear ended June 30, 2021 in accordunce with the requirements of regnlation 36 of the Regulations,

The responsilility for compliance with the Regulanons 1z that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Chur
responsibility is 1o review whether the Statement of {'fnd'rtpliﬂ.nc: reflects the status of the Cmnp:iny's CﬂrIIPliS-nf.E with the
provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and 1o highlight any non-compliance with the requirernents of the
Regulations. A review 15 limited primarily to inquites of (he Company’s persoanel and review of varous documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

Aga [att of our audit of the financial starenents we are Itqu.ll:l:l’] ter arbbann an mdmmnd'mg of the acco l:ld'lﬂl'lg and internal
comtrol systems sulficient 1o plan the audit and develop an effective audie approach, We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Directars' statement on internal contiol covers all dsks and controls or ta form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corpurale govermance procedures and Hsks,

'The Regulations requure the Company to plce before the Audic Commitree, and upon recommendation of the Audir
Committer, place before the Beard of Directors fur therr eview and approval, its related party transactions. We are only
regpaized and have ensuzed compliznce of Uds requitement o the extent of the approval of the related party transactions
by the Boasd of Directors upon recommendation of the Audi Comemities.

Bazed on our teview, nothing has come w our aitennon which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance docs
not approprately reflece the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the
Regulations as applicable o the Company foe the year ended June 30, 2021

()
il Psadon g Kb
Jf?-'wf Uﬁ 8 ¥ ||I

Grunt Thorton Anjum Rahman
Chaztered Accountants

Labuwte

Date: B-Oxctober 2021

Chartered Accountants
Mermbuer of Grant Thornton lnlemational Lid

(ffices in Karachi & |slamabad



Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

o GrantThornton

An instinct for growth L Floes, RemCanre,
Pakistan.
T+92 42 37423 E21-23, 37422 587
F +92 42 37425 485
W, gipak, com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of JCC Industries Limited (the Company), which
comprise the staterment of financial pesition as at June 30, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and
ather comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash fluws for the year
then ended, and notes to the fnancial statements, including 4 summary of significant accounting policies
and other cxplanatory information, (here-in-after referred to as “the financial statements")  and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit

In our opinion ant o the best of our informaton and according to the explinations given 1o us, the
statement  of fnandal position, statement of profic or loss and other comprehensive ingorme, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes {orming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applcable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively give a
true and fair view of the state of the Company's aflairs as at June 30, 2021 and of the loss and other

comprehensive income, the changes in equily snd 1ts cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awdier's Reiponsibelities
Jor the Awdit of the Finanvial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Cade of Ethucs for Profissional
Acconntants (the Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan fthe inssitwtz)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
mai:r evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Ll

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grank Thorrton Internationa’ Lid
Officea in Karachi & lslamabad



Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 1.2 in the financial staterments which descrbes that the Company has
accumulated losses amounting w Rs. 759.522 million. The Company's current liabilities have also exceeded
its current assets resuliing in short fall of working capital and negative cash flows {rom operating activities.
These conditions indicate existenee of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Company’s ability to contnuc as a going concern. These financial statements have, however, been prepared
on a going concern basis for the reasons, as mare fully explained in note 1.2 1o the financial starcments.

Our opinion is not modified in this respect.

Eey Audit Mauers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
wur audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our cpinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key Audit Matters:

Sr.
Mo

1

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Investment Properties

Refer wo note 15 to the annexed financial statements.
‘The Company owns frechold land and bulding at
32-Em Multan Road, Sundar, Lalore, As at June 30,
21, the fair value of invesment propertcs was Rs.
1.013 badlion, representing 95% af the Company’s
total asscts as at that date
The fair wvalues of the Company™s ivestiment
properties were assessed by management based on

mdependent  valuations  preparcd by cxternal

property valuers,

We identificd valuation of investment properties as
a key andit matter beeanse the determination of the
fair velues involves significant judgement and
esrimation, particulardy in selecting the appropoate
valuation methodology and in determining the
underlying assumpnons, which increase the nsk of
error o potcntial management bias, and because the
valuations are sensiive 1o the key assumplons

applicd.

Cur andir procedures to assess the-valuation of

invesmment propertes iwcluded the followang:

. evaluating the gualifications, cxpenence and
enmpetence of the external valeer engaged by
management and holding discussions with
the external valuer, without the presence of
management, o understand their valuaton
methods and the assumptions applied,

*  cvsluating the valvation methodology used
lay the external valuer by cotnparison with the
valuatinn methodologies applied by other
valuers for similar property types;

*  assessing the key assumptions adopted in the
valuations, including those relating to sale
ptice per square foot/kanal and the disccunt
rates applied to determine forced sale value,
by comparing them with historical rates and
available industry data and considering the
possibility of errur or management bias in the
selection of assumptions adopted; and

*  assessing fair value gain recorded during the
year,

7.8




Valuation of Gratuity

Refer to note 82 w the pomexed  financial
STATEMENTS,

Az at June 30, 2021 the Company’s obligaton in
respeet of defined bepefit plan of its existing

employees amounted to Bs. 31.706 million.

In determining the cbligation in respect of defined
benefit plans, the Company engaged an actuarial
expert to perform the acmarial valuadon of the
defined benefit obligation, which involves use of key
assumptions including discount rates, expectod rare
of increase in foture salanes and mertahiy ates,
Changes m any of these lu:'}' rissumptiﬁl'lﬂ can lave a
material impact on the caleulaton of these habilines,

We identificd retirement benefit obligation as @ key
zudit matter because of signifieant management
judgmen: relating to valuation assumptions that are
inherently complex and require specialist acrarial

input.

Chur andit procedures amongst others, OOW
undesstanding the management valuation proccss,
including the involvernent of actuarial expent in
performing the acmuanal valuadon of plan asseis
and defined benefit obligation:

] we assessed the competence and objectiviry
of the qualificd actuary cngaped by the
Company to value the defined bunefi
obligation under [AS 19 'Employes Benefis',

*  we assessed the appropoatencss of the
methodology  and  assumptions  used to
determine the oblipaton tn respect of defined
benefilt plang by comparison with  the
valuatdon methodologies applied by other
acruasies;

. we reviewed data provided by the Company
to actuary for the porpose of valuation;

o wealso reviewed the adequeacy of the related
disclosures in the financial statefnents; acd

. we verificd payments made during the year.

Transactions with related parties

As referred toin note 7 and note 12 w the annexed
financial statetnents, the Company has obtaned
significanr  financing amounung w Bs 611313
million from its related partes including directors
and the associared Company. These loans also
wclude interest frec loans which need amortization,

We identified transactions with related parnes as a
key audit matter because of amounts invehred.

Our andit procedures among others comprised:

* ovicwed tenms of loan from agreements.

*  revicwed the minutes of meetings of the
Board of Directors to ensure approval of
related party transactions.

*  gbtned mdependent comfinmarions from
directors and associated Company.

*  recalculated markup cxpense by applying
applicable markup rates defined in such
mﬂr{{-‘nimltﬁ.

*  ensured sppropouteness of discloseres in
financial staterments.

¢ cnsured compliance of IFRE-9.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other nformation comprises the
information included in the anmal repart for the year ended June 30, 2021, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

&




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is (o read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informateon is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the peeparation and fair presentation of the financial statements n
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requicements
of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable
the preparation of financial statements thar are free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud

or CITOL

In preparing the financal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
gpoing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realisde alternative but to do so.

Board of dircctors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are ta obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misseatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audior’s repart that
includes our opinian. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a puarantee thal an
awdit conducted  in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a matcral
imisstatement when it cxists, Misstaternents can arise from {raud or error and are considered material 1f,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasumably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of 2n audit in accordance with 1As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment

and 1aintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial siatements, whether duc
to fraud or crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those rsks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
dsk of not detecting a material misstaiement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of intcrnal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in vrder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control

e



« Evaluae the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of
acrounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the poing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obiained, whether a material uncerminty exisis
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we condude that a material uncertanty exists, we are required
to draw attention in vur auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, Future events or
vonditions may cause the Company to cease to continue s a gaing concert.

e Evaluare the overall presentation, strucrure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represcot the underlying transactions and
cvents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and aming
of the audit and significant mudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal coentrol that

we identify during our sudit.

We also provide the board of ditectors with a statement that we have complied with relevant cthical
rexuirernents reparding independence, and to communicate with them all reladonships and cther matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore, the
key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rase drcumstances, we determine that @ matter
chould not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expecied 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we farther report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017,

by the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equiry and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 and are in

agreement with the bocks of account and retans;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company™s business; and



d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1280).

The engagement parter un the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Imran Afral.

/]
A
k-l o Moo
Grant Thornton Anjum Ra

Chartered Accountants
Lahore

Date: B-Octobes-2021



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

{FORMERLY ICC TEXTILES LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
EQLUITY AND LIABILITIES Note ].
Rupees | Rupees

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

32,000,000 [ 2020: 32,000,000 ) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 320,000,000 320,000,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 5 300,011,200 300,011,200
Capital reserves

Revaluation surplus [ 567,389,985 568,462,515
Revenue reserves
Accumulated loss (759,522,288) (724,272,986)
Total equity 107,878,897 144,200,729
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES =
Long term financing from directors 7 575,529,060 539,392,610
Deferred liabllitles 8 72,297,455 74,474,465

647,826,515 613,867,075

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables L 102,753,430 91,850,752
Security deposits 10 2,024,482 2,363,823
Accrucd interest / mark-up i1 169,969,442 131,176,347
Short-term borrowings 12 35,784,203 36,247,863
Unclaimed dividend 1,662,656 || 1,662,656

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes fram 1 to 41 form an Integral part of these financial state

yn.
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CIIIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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DIRECTOR

312,194,213

263,301,541

1,067,899,625

1,021,269,345
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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(FORMERLY ICC TEXTILES LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 14 6,904,838 8,154,124
Investment properties 15 1,012,5138,550 962,418,550
Long term loans and advances 16 22,500 5,000
Long term deposits 17 1,469,034 1,469,034
1,020,914,922 972,046,708
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and |oose tools 18 4,262,773 4,450,577
Trade debis 19 88,654 1,439,907
Loans and advances 20 1,180,736 925,227
Short term prepayments and other receivables 21 14,977,918 572,159
Tax refunds due from Government 22 20,298,380 32,882,669
Cash and bank balances 23 1,849,042 754,388
42,657,503 41,024,927
MNon-current assets classified as held for sale 24 4,327,200 8,297,710
TOTAL ASSETS 1,067,899,625 1,021,369,345

Thp annexed notes from 1 to 41 farm an integral part of these financial statements,
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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

{ FORMERLY ICC TEXTILES LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Mote
Rupees Rupees
HEVENUE 25 9,987,070 33,811,152
DIRECT COST 26 (8,838,287) (12,350,947}
GROSS PROFIT 1,148,783 21,460,205
OPERATING EXPENSES:
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 27 (26,292,715) (29,261,641)
OTHER EXPENSES 28 (1,706,170) (7,749,798)
(27,998,885) (37,011,439]
(26,850,102) (15,551,234)
OTHER INCOME 29 1,510,567 96,646,256
OFERATING (LOSS) | PROFIT (25,339,535) B1,095,022
FINANCE COST 30 (60,975,449) (79,298,129)
CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 50,100,000 2,539,325
[LOSS) /| PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (36,214,984) 4,336,218
TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 3n (2,710,149) [5,896,971]
LOSS AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR (38,925,133) {1,560,753)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequentiy to profit or loss z ¥
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gain on employee benefit obligations g.2 2,902,174 4,180,958
Hevaluation surplus on property, plant and eguipment (net of tax) - 421,245
Revaluation decrease in non-current assets classified as held for sale (net
of tax) {298,874) (961,717)
2,603,300 3,640,486
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2,603,300 3,640,486

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR

LOS5 PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The annexed notes fram 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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DIRECTOR
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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
( FORMERLY ICC TEXTILES LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from cperations 36 (15.650,435) 6,220,825

Finance cost paid 15,990,787 (5,594,014 |

Incame tax paid 1,427,026 (4,937,659)

Gratuity paid (3,413,149) (1,726,236

14,004,664 {12,257,909)

Net cash used in eperating activitios (1,645,771) (6,037,084)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{Increase) / decrease in long term loans and advances (17,500) £9,000

Proceeds from dls.pnsals of property, plant and eguipment & non- 4900000 2,720,000

current assets classified as held for sale

Purchase of fixed assets - {88,530}
Met cash from investing activities 3,882,500 2,700,170
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(Repayment of) / Proceeds from long term financing obtained from directors (678,416]) 2,812,360

(Repayment of) / Proceeds from short term borrowings (463,660) 305,108
Met cash [used in) / from financing activities (1,142,076} 3,117,468
MET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,094,653 |215,4ﬂﬁl1
CASH AND GASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 754,388 973,834
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 23 :I.,E,-rJI-EI,l.'ZI-ﬁ_L= ] 754,388

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

( FORMERLY ICC TEXTILES LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

| Capital Revenue
| Reserves - Rescrves -
Description Paid-up Revaluation | Accumulated |Total Shareholdors'
Capital Surplus Losses Equity
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance at July 01, 2019 300,011,200 572,329953  (730,220,157) 142,120,956
Other comarehensive income For the year [540,472) 4,180,958 3,640,486
Loss for the year - = (1,560,753] (1,560,753)
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - [540,472) 260,205 2,079,733
Transfar to accumulated lass on account of disposal

af revalued assets and incremental depreciation {net of tax) - (3,226,956) 3,326,965 -
Balance at June 30, 2020 300,011,200 568,462,515  (724,272,986) 144,200,729
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - [298,874) 2,902,174 2,603,300
Loss for the year - - (38,925,133) |38,925,133]
Tozal comprenensive loss for the pear - {298,874) (36,022,089 . 136,321,833
Transfer to accumulated loss on account of disposal

of revalued assets and incremental depreciation (net of tax) - {773,656) 773,656 -

Balance at June 30, 2021 300,011, 200 567,389,985 (759,522,268) 107,878,896

T
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ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

1.2

ICC Industries Limited ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited) "the Company" was incorporated in Pakistan on May 25,
1989 as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed with the enactment
of the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). The shares of the Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The principal activity of the Company is renting out vacant buildings and / or open area of the Company's
premises. The registered office of the Company is situated at 242-A, Anand Road, Upper Mall, Lahore and the
Company's another premises is located at 32-Km Multan Road, Sundar, Lahore.

The Company has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 759.522 million at the year end and the Company's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 269.537 million at the year end.

These conditions indicate existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as going concern and therefore, may be unable to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in normal course of business. Continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent on its
ability to attain satisfactory levels of profitability and liquidity in the future by bringing its liabilities to
serviceable levels and availability of adequate working capital through continued support from its customers and

(a) the principal lenders of the Company; and

(b) the sponsors of the Company.
These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis on the grounds that the Company will be
able to achieve satisfactory levels of profitability and liquidity in the future based on the plans drawn up by the
management for this purpose, bringing its liabilities to serviceable levels and availability of the adequate working
capital from its lenders and sponsors.

To substantiate its going concern assumption:

i In order to consolidate the Company's resources, due to uncertainty in securing industrial gas connection,
which was essential for cheaper and continuous gas based electricity, the Company had disposed off all
its looms.

ji The Company has rented out its partial factory buildings and labour colony to generate cash flows;

iii Bank borrowings had been fully repaid by April 2018;

iv During the year 2015, the Company had also repaid long term loan amounting to Rs. 14.896 million and
had reduced the running finance facilities from Rs. 480 million to Rs. 330 million, as 37 sulzer looms were
disposed off and one director of the Company sold his property to MCB Bank Limited under buy-back
arrangement, and advanced such proceeds amounting to Rs. 140 million as long term loan to the
Company for partial settlement of the finance facilities.

v Directors of the Company have decided to convert interest bearing loans extended to the Company
amounting to Rs. 187.644 million into interest free loans w.e.f Mar 31, 2020 and also extended further
long term interest free loans during the year to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The
sponsors of the Company would continue such support in future;

Vi Few directors of the Company had also invested Rs.321.531 million through long term interest free loans
during May 2013 to June 2016 to meet working capital requirements of the Company.
vii During 2013, the Board of Directors of ICC (Private) Limited, an associated undertaking, had decided to

write off following outstanding loans advanced to the Company:
- Long term interest free loans amounting to Rs. 189.150 million with carrying value, in ICC Industries
Limited books, amounting to Rs. 48.801 million; and
- Short term interest bearing loans amounting to Rs. 30.850 million.
The financial statements consequently do not include any adjustment relating to the realization of the assets and
liquidation of its liabilities that might be necessary would the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern.



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21

2.3

24

Statement of Compllance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017. In case requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 shall prevail.

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in current year

There are certain new standards,interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards which are
mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2020 but are not considered to
be relevant or have significant effect on the Company's financial reporting.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accouting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective form the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or

interpretation.

Effective Date
(annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 Buisness Combinations - Conceptual framework - (Amendments) 1 January 2022

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - (Amendments) 1 January 2022
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets -

IAS 37 (Ammendments 1 January 2022
Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-20 1 January 2022

IAS 41 A griculture 1 January 2022

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — (Amendments) 1 January 2023
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —

IAS 8 (Amendments) 1 January 2023

IAS 12 Income Taxes 1 January 2023

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards and
conceptual framework have also been issued by IASB. Such improvements are generally effective accounting
periods beginning on or after January 2022.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
IASB Effective date
(Annual Periods
beginning on or

Standards or interpretation after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 01 July 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

Basls of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

- staff retirement benefits which are measured at present value of defined benefit obligations (refer note 4.1);
- free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery which are measured at revalued amounts (refer note 4.2);
- financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer note 4.8); and

- non current assets classified as held for sale which are measured at fair value (refer note 4.17).



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Critical accounting estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are discussed below:

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management looks at the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional,
unless they contain significant financing component in which case such are recognised at fair value. The Company
holds trade debts with objective of collecting contractual cash flows and therefore, measures its trade debts
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Company reviews annually its trade
debts for impairment.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its
property, plant and equipment. The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and
equipment are based on valuation performed by external professional valuers and recommendations of technical
teams of the Company. The said recommendation also includes estimates with respect to residual values and
depreciable lives. Further, the Company reviews its assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any
change in use of assets in future years might the affect carrying amounts of the respective item of property, plant
and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell if their carrying amount is recoverable principally through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use.

Investment property and assets classlifled as held for sale

Valuation is performed by external professional valuers. Further, the Company reviews its assets for possible
impairment on an annual basis. Any change use of assets in future years might affect carrying amounts of the
respective item with a corresponding effect on the impairment.

Stock in trade and stores, spare parts and loose tools

The Company's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) and impairment of stock in trade and stores,
spare parts and loose tools to assess any diminution in the respecting carrying values and wherever required
provision for NRV / impairment is made. The difference in provision, if any, is recognized in statement of profit or
loss for the year.

Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the financial statements for the
valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation. Any changes in these assumptions might affect
unrecognized gains and losses in those years.

Provision for contingencles

The Company's management uses assumptions and estimates in disclosures and assessment of provision for the
contingencies.



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

3 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

4.2

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme ( defined benefit plan ) covering all eligible directors and
employees, payable at the cessation of employment. The liability is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation
applying Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method. The Company has a policy of carrying out actuarial
valuation on annual basis with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers to cover the obligations under
the scheme.

Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30 are as follows:

- Discount rate used for year end obligation 10.0% (2020: 8.5%) per annum
- Expected rate of salary increase in future 9.0% (2020: 7.5%) per annum
- Average duration of the defined benefit obligation 2 years (2020: 2 years)
- Mortality rate assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table ( 2020:SLIC 2001-2005
ultimate mortality rates with one year setback as per recommendation of Pakistan Society of Actuaries
("PSOA").
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Company's management.

Furniture and fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment

Subsequently, furniture and fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment are measured using cost
model i.e. cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged
to statement of profit or loss on diminishing balance method at the rates as disclosed in Note 14 so as to write
off the depreciable amount of furniture and fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment over
their estimated useful lives.

Freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery

Free hold land is subsequently measured using revaluation model at the revalued amounts.

Buildings and plant and machinery are subsequently measured using revaluation model at revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Any surplus on revaluation of freehold land,
building on freehold land, and plant and machinery is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment account. Revaluation is carried with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
assets does not differ materially from the fair value. To the extent of incremental depreciation charged on the
revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred tax) is
transferred directlv to accumulated loss.

Depreciation on buildings and plant and machinery is charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line
method at the rates as disclosed in Note 14 so as to write off the depreciable amount of these assets over their
estimated useful lives.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment except freehold land is charged from the date of
acquisition / capitalization / start of commercial production of the assets and depreciation on assets disposed off
during the year is charged up to the date of disposal.

Gain / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is reflected in statement of profit or loss during the year
in which they are incurred. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to income as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized.

The assets' residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed as required, but at least annually and adjusted
if impact on depreciation is significant.



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Investment properties

Properties which are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both are classified as investment
properties. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given.
Subsequently these are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined annually by an independent professional
valuer based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date
of valuation between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm length transaction. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property, following a change in its
use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item and its fair value is
recognized in revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment. Upon disposal, the related revaluation
surplus is transferred to accumulated loss. Any gain or loss arising in this manner is credited to statement of
profit or loss.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes for subsequent recording.

Capltal work-In-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the date of statement of financial position less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as operating fixed asset when it is
made available for intended use.

Right of use assets

Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs,
any lease payments made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received.
These are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset.
Where the ownership of the asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
asset reflects that the Company will exercise the purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of
asset.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are stated at lower of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined by applying moving average method
except goods in transit which are stated at lower of cost.

Stock In trade

Stock in trade is stated principally at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of major components of stock in trade is determined as follows:-

Raw materials - At annual average cost

Work in process and finished goods - At prime cost plus appropriate production
overheads using weighted average

Net realizable value means estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less costs necessarily to be
incurred to make the sale.



ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

4.8

Financlal Iinstruments

4.8.1 Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or
fair value through profit or loss on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets of the Company are classified as follows:

a) Financial assets at amortised cost]

Financial assets at amortised cost are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising
on derecognition are recognised directly in profit or loss account.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or lossd

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assets which are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss account in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given and received
respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or
cost as the case may be.

Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the
statement of profit or loss account for the period in which it arises.

Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive
income there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss account following the

derecognition of the eauitv instruments.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have

been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Assets or
liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposed by
the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the
Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. The Company recognises in profit or loss account, as an impairment gain or loss,
the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date.
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4.9

4.10

4.11

4.8.2 Financlal llabliitles

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at fair value minus
transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss account.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss account.

4.8.3 Off-setting of financlal assets and financlal liabllitles

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Forelgn currencles

Transactions in currencies other than Pak Rupee are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At each date of statement of financial position, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date of statement of financial
position.

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the period.

Revenue recognition

-Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a promised
goods to a customer, and control either transfers over time or at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding government levies.

-Rental income is recognised over time.

-Interest income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be estimated reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal balance outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Taxation
Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account applicable tax credits. rebates and exemption available. if anv. and tax paid on bresumptive basis.
Deferred

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax
losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which such temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary

differences.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the date of statement of financial position. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of
profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to equity or OCl in which case it is included in equity
or statement of comprehensive income.
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4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each date of statement of financial position to
ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost
of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows
using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.
Provisions

A provision is recognized in the financial statements when the Company has legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made to the amount of obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash In hand and bank balances and other short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

Contingent liability

Contingent liability is disclosed when:
-There is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Company; or
-There is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.

Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell if their carrying amount is recoverable principally through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use.
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4.18

4.19

4.20

Lease liability

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If the implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate is used. Subsequently these are increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and remeasured for lease
modifications, if any.

Liabilities in respect of short term and low value leases are not recognised and payments against such leases are
recognised as expense in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
tn he naid in fiitiire far snndc and cervirec received Thece are recnonized at amartized coct

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recorded at the proceeds received. In subsequent periods, borrowings are stated at
amortized cost using the effective yield method. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are
included in current liabilities to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.
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2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
30,001,120 (2020 : 30,001,120) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 300,011,200 300,011,200
6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX
Surplus arising on revaluation 6.1 607,981,683 609,492,290
Less: Deferred tax arising on surplus on revaluation 6.2 40,591,699 41,029,775
567,389,985 568,462,515
6.1 Opening balance of surplus on revaluation 609,492,290 614,939,385
Add: Surplus arising during the year - 593,303
Less: Incremental depreciation:
Plant & machinery | 209,402 | | 867,870 |
209,402 867,870
Less: Revaluation relating to plant & machinery disposed off 880,256 3,817,997
Less: Revaluation decrease in non-current assets 2 420,949 1,354,531
classified as held for sale
607,981,683 609,492,290
The revaluation of free - hold land and buildings on free - hold land was carried out by Arch-e'-decon
(Evaluators, Surveyors, Architects and Engineers) as at June 30, 2020. The revaluations resulted in followings:
Rupees
Increase in carrying value of plant and machinery 593,303
6.1.2 Incremental depreciation represents the difference between actual depreciation on revalued property, plant and
equipment and equivalent depreciation based on historical cost of property, plant and equipment.
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
6.2 Related deferred tax liability on July 01 41,029,775 42,609,432
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of PPE - 172,058
Tax effect on incremental depreciation & disposal
of assets during the year (316,001) (1,358,901)
Tax effect on revaluation decrease in non-current
assets classified as held for sale (122,075) (392,814)
40,591,699 41,029,775

Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 166.698 million (2020: Rs. 214.710 million) arising on account of temporary
differences mainly for property, plant and equipment, gratuity, unused tax loses and unused tax credits has nor
been accounted for due to uncertainty regarding its recoverability in the foreseeable future.
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Long term financing from directors- Unsecured

71

7.11

7.1.2
713

7.5.1

7.5.2

Interest free loans - 1

Interest bearing loan - 2
Interest bearing loan - 3
Interest bearing loan - 4

Interest free loan - 5

Original Loan amounts
Less: Present Value Adjustment

Add: Interest charged to statement of
profit or loss ( Unwinding of discount )

Interest charged to statement of profit or loss:

Opening balance
Unwinding of discount for the year
Closing balance

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
7.1 219,627,016 199,734,727
7.2 - -
7.3 57,000,000 65,000,000
7.4 140,000,000 140,000,000
7.5 158,902,044 134,657,883
575,529,060 539,392,610
Note Rupees Rupees
Rupees Rupees
7.1.2 321,531,223 321,531,223
7.1.3 206,132,600 206,132,600
115,398,623 115,398,623
7.1.1 104,228,393 84,336,104
219,627,016 199,734,727
84,336,104 66,271,179
19,892,289 18,064,925
104,228,393 84,336,104

These interest free loans are repayable in lump sum on June 30, 2025 (2020: June 30, 2025).
These long term interest free loans have been measured at amortized cost by applying weighted average

interest rate ranging from 8.06% to 11.64% (2020: 8.06% to 11.64%).

These loans carries mark-up @ one month KIBOR plus 2% (2020: one month KIBOR plus 2%) and were
repayable in lump sum on December 31, 2020. During the last year, these loans were converted in interest free

loans and are repayable in lump sum on March 31, 2023 (Refer note 7.5).

This loan carries mark-up @ one month KIBOR plus 2% (2020: one month KIBOR plus 2% and is repayable to in

lump sum on June 30, 2025.

The loan carries mark-up @ one month KIBOR plus 2% (2020: one month KIBOR plus 2% and is repayable in

lump sum on June 30, 2025.

Original Loan amounts
Less: Present value adjustment on initial recognition
Add: Interest charged to statement of profit or loss

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
7.2 197,448,411 190,126,827
60,940,437 59,582,163
22,394,070 4,113,219
158,902,044 134,657,883

These long term interest free loans have been measured at amortized cost by applying weighted average

interest rate ranging from 9.42% to 13.42% (2020: 9.44% to 13.42%).

These loans are payable in lumpsum on March 31, 2023.




DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred tax
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
6.2 40,591,699 41,029,775
8.2 31,705,756 33,444,690
72,297,455 74,474,465

8.1 The scheme provides for gratuity benefits for all permanent employees who attain minimum qualifying period of
one year. Provision has been made on the basis of latest actuarial valuation made on June 30, 2021 by applying

projected unit credit method.

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
8.2 Changes in Present Value of
Defined Benefit Obligations:
Opening liability 33,444,690 32,775,959
Charge for the year 8.3 4,576,389 6,575,925
Remeasurement gain recognised in other comprehensive
income (experience adjustments) (2,902,174) (4,180,958)
Benefits paid during the year (3,413,149) (1,726,236)
Closing liability 31,705,756 33,444,690
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
8.3 Charge for the year in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 1,878,649 2,028,345
Interest cost 2,697,740 4,547,580
4,576,389 6,575,925
8.4 The present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Present value of
defined benefit
obligation as at June
30 31,705,756 33,444,690 32,775,959 4,072,687 43,218,235
8.5 Charge for the year has been 2021 2020
Note
allocated as under: Rupees Rupees
Direct Cost 26.1 847,030 1,213,637
Administrative expenses 27.1 3,729,359 5,362,288
4,576,389 6,575,925

8.6 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

Discount rate + 1%
Discount rate - 1%
Salary increase + 1%
Salary increase - 1%

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
31,278,494 32,962,083
32,179,257 33,980,221
32,184,204 33,985,700
31,266,482 32,948,478
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2021 2020
Note

Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 10,958,334 10,773,858
Due to associated company 136,655 133,333
Accrued liabilities 9.1 63,314,203 52,528,675
Advances from customers 1,641,478 3,081,518
Income tax deducted at source 9,867,857 9,242,883
Sales tax deducted at source 1,301,522 1,318,834
Final dues payable 15,499,891 14,664,321
Others 33,490 107,330

102,753,430 91,850,752

9.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 35.836 million ( 2020: Rs. 27.406 million) payable to the Chief Executive Officer

(related party).
SECURITY DEPOSITS

These amounts have been received as security deposits from tenants which have not been kept in a separate bank account
and are being utilized as working capital of the Company in accordance with written agreements executed with such

tenants.
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
ACCRUED MARKUP
Accrued mark-up / interest on long
term financing - related parties 21.1 157,647,029 121,980,288
Accrued mark-up / interest on short term
borrowings - related party 12,322,413 9,196,059
169,969,442 131,176,347
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Banking companies - unsecured
Commercial bank- current account (bank overdraft) 12.1 - 463,660
Related parties - unsecured
Associated company- unsecured 12.2 35,784,203 35,784,203
35,784,203 36,247,863
121 The unfavourable balance has been arisen due to issuance of cheques near year end. However, concerned bank
statement showed favourable balance.
12.2 The short term financing has been obtained to meet working capital requirements of the company and to settle
bank's borrowings. This is payable on demand to the associated Company.
12.3 Mark-up is charged at the same rates which are being charged by the bank to the associated company ICC (Pvt)

Limited i.e. one month KIBOR plus 2.25% ( 2020: One month KIBOR plus 2.00% ) per annum.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

131
13.11

13.1.2

CONTINGENCIES

Withholding Tax Compliance proceedings u/s 161/205 of the Ordinance for the Tax Year 2009 were initiated by
the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR). The Company had duly replied the said notice and the DCIR
after considering the said replies, passed Order u/s 161/205 of the Ordinance raising impugned demand of Rs.
1,968,012/- u/s 161 of the Ordinance.

Being aggrieved, the Company preferred appeal before the CIR-A against the Order passed by the DCIR. The CIR-
A without considering the arguments put forth, passed Order u/s 129(1A), and confirmed the demand raised by
the DCIR.

Being aggrieved, the company preferred appeal before the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
which is pending for fixation till date.

The Company had also filed a rectification application u/s 221 of the Ordinance against the Order passed by the
Learned DCIR. The CIR-A without considering the arguments put forth, passed passed an order confirmed the
demand raised by the DCIR. Being aggrieved, the company preferred an appeal before ATIR, whereby the ATIR
confirmed the demand raised by CIR-A upto Rs. 825,000/- and remanded back the case to assessing officer in
respect of the remaining demand. No correspondence has been received from the department till date.

However, no provision has been made in these financial statements as management of the Company is confident
of favourable outcome.

During 2011, Withholding Tax Compliance proceedings u/s 161/205(3) of the Ordinance for the Tax Year 2010
were initiated by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) creating a demand of Rs. 50,349,214/-.
Being aggrieved, the Company had preferred appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals-Il (CIR-A)
Lahore. On the basis of this appeal, the CIR-A reduced the demand to Rs.2,044,547/- and remanded back the
case in respect of remaining demand. The Company, however, preferred appeal before Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal Lahore (ITAT) which is pending for adjudication.

At the same time, ACIR finalized the proceedings u/s 124/161/205 and demanded Rs. 4,460,664/- comprising
demand u/s 161 and default surcharge u/s 205 amounting to Rs. 2,115,578/- and Rs. 2,345,086/- respectively.

The Company has preferred an appeal before CIR-A against the said default surcharge of Rs. 2,345,086/-
whereby the CIR-A after considering the arguments remanded back the case to the assessing officer to revisit the
issue. The Compnay had also filed a rectification application u/s 221 of the Ordinance which has been disposed
off vide order dated 04-06-2020 . Remand back proceedings in respect of imposition of default surcharge were
initiated and the Company had duly complied the notice. No correspondence has been received from the
department till date.

However, no provision has been made in these financial statements as management of the Company is confident
of favourable outcome.
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13.1.3

During 2016, proceedings under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance were initiated by the ACIR in respect of Tax
Year 2010. The Company replied the said notice duly responding the objections. The DCIR after considering the
submitted reply, passed the Order u/s 122(5A) of the Ordinance, whereby raising impugned demand of Rs.
4,187,861/- in respect of issue of Minimum Tax u/s 113 of the Ordinance.

Being aggrieved, the Company had preferred appeal before the CIR-A against the order passed by the DCIR.

The CIR-A after considering the arguments put forth, passed the Order in favour of the Company and remanded
back the proceedings to the department.Later on, the CIR finalized procedings by passing an order and raised
impugned demand of Rs. 3,740,750/- and the company has preferred an appeal before CIR-A.The case is pending
for adjudication till date.

However, no provision has been made in these financial statements as management of the Company is confident
of favourable outcome.

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

141

Operating fixed assets

Costor DEPRECIATION
Costof | Surplus/deficit| Gross book For the year/ Net book value
DESCRIPTION assessed value additions / | on revaluation | valueason Asonluly 01, Y AsonJune30, || ason June 30,
asonJuly 01, i Rate % Revaluation | (adjustments 4
020 (deletion) | ofassets | June 30,2021 2020 on disposals) 2021 2021
Rupees Rupees

Plant and machinery 4,823,572 - - 4228572 6.2-16.7 - - 311,684 302,020 3,926,552

(595,000) (9,664)
Furniture and fittings 3,150,835 - - 3,150,835 10 2,721,924 - 42,291 2,770,215 380,620
Vehicles 1,544,065 - - 1,544,065 20 1,351,967 - 38,420 1,390,387 153,678
Electrical appliances 2,146,539 . - 2,146539 10 1,633,793 . 51,275 1,685,068 461,471
Office equipment 9,625,605 . - 9625605 10 7,422,808 . 220,280 7,643,088 1,982,517
21,290,616 - - 20,695,616 13,136,492 - 663,950 13,790,778 6,904,838

(595,000) (9,664)

Cost or DEPRECIATION
Costof | Surplus/deficit| Grossbook h Net book value
assessed value ", . ! For the year/
DESCRIPTION additions / | on revaluation| value as on As on July 01, ! ) AsonJune30, | a5 on June 30,
ason July 01, . Rate % 2019 Revaluation | (adjustments 200
2019 (deletion) ofassets | June 30,2020 on disposals) 2020
Rupees Rupees
Plant and machinery 12,101,746 - 593303 4,823,572 714 3482112 (2,723477) 1,107,808 - 4,823,572
(2,723477)

(5,148,000) (1,866,443)
Furniture and fittings 3,107,005 43,830 - 3,150,835 10 2,682,437 - 45,487 2,121,924 422911
Vehicles 2,244,065 - - 1,544,065 20 1,960,456 - 60,649 1,351,967 192,098

(700,000) (669,138)
Electrical appliances 2,101,539 45,000 - 2,146,539 10 1,581,207 - 52,586 1,633,793 512,746
Office equipment 9,625,605 - - 9,625,605 10 7,178,053 - 244,755 7,422,808 2,202,797

29,179,960 88,830  (2130,174) 21,290,616 16,884,265  (2,723,477) 1,511,285 13,136,492 8,154,124
(5.848,000) (2535.581)




14.1.1

14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.4

14.1.5

2021 2020
1aél Note
Depreciation for the year has Rupees Rupees
been allocated as under :

Direct cost 26 311,684 1,107,808

Administrative expenses 27 352,266 403,477
663,950 1,511,285

Disposal of fixed assets & assets held for sale

Cost/ Gain/(loss)
Particulars Revalued | Book value |Sale proceeds on disposal Mode of disposal Name and address
amount Rs. Rs. Rs
Bs .

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Generator Caterpiller 2,256,563 2,256,563 2,500,000 243,437 By Negotiation United Confictionery (Pvt)

(Model 3512-1275 KVA) Ltd. 101 - Kohinoor
Colony, Suraj Kund Road,
Multan..

12 Overhead Cleaners 600,000 600,000 590,000 (10,000) By Negotiation Zam Zam Texttalion, House

(Magitex) #.888 Street No. 3, Khalid
Abad, Faisalabad.

Other assets having book value of 306,000 306,000 310,000 4,000 By Negotiation Hanzalah Impex

less than Rs. 500,000 International, Godown
No. 134, Upper Portion, Old
Electric Market, Jinnah
Road, Faisalabad.

Operating fixed assets

Fork Lifter - Bettery Operated 595,000 585,336 500,000 (85,336) By Negotiation Hanzalah Impex

(TMC - FB30-7) .
International, Godown
No. 134, Upper Portion, Old
Electric Market, Jinnah
Road, Faisalabad.

2021 Rupees 3,757,563 3,747,899 3,900,000 152,101

2020 Rupees 7,348,000 4,720,639 2,720,000 (2,000,639)

The Company does not have any direct or indirect relation with the buyers of such assets.

At the time of transfer of Land and Building to Investment property on December 31, 2017, Free - hold land and

buildings on free - hold land were revalued by an independent valuer, Arch-e’-decon (Evaluators, Surveyors,

Architects and Engineers), resulting in surplus of Rs. 8.919 million and incorporated in the financial statements

for the year ended June 30, 2018. Previously, five revaluations had been carried out by Arch-e¢’-decon, an

independent valuer. First revaluation was carried out during 2006, second during 2009, third during 2012, fourth

during 2015, fifth during 2017. The basis used for revaluation of plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and machinery: Value has been determined with reference to prevailing prices of similar plants and
machinery depreciated to account for the age, usage and physical condition.

Plant and machinery represent values subsequent to revaluations. Had there been no revaluation, carrying
amount of revalued fixed assets would have been as follows:

Plant and machinery

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,210,279 1,875,452

Forced sale value of revalued fixed assets amounts to Rs. 2,944,914 (2020: Rs. 3,617,454).
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Fair values as at July 01
Free hold land 792,081,000 772,375,000
Buildings on freehold land 170,337,550 171,973,225
962,418,550 944,348,225
Carrying value before revaluation as at June 30
Free hold land 792,081,000 772,375,000
Buildings on freehold land 170,337,550 171,973,225
962,418,550 944,348,225
Changes in fair values during the year:
Free hold land 50,100,000 4,175,000
Buildings on freehold land - (1,635,675)
50,100,000 2,539,325
Other changes ( recognition of related liability ) during the year - 15,531,000
Fair values as at June 30
Free hold land 842,181,000 792,081,000
Buildings on freehold land 170,337,550 170,337,550

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

1,012,518,550 962,418,550

As of reporting date, investment properties comprise of freehold land and buildings on freehold land transferred
from property, plant and equipment on January 31, 2017 and December 31, 2017.
Latest valuation of these properties has been carried out on December 31, 2020 by an independent valuer, M/s
Arch-e’ Decon.
The different levels to measure fair value have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1],

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) [Level 2].
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).
Recurring fair value measurements

There are no level 1 and level 3 assets or transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during 2020.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values:

At the end of each financial year, the management updates its assessment of the fair value of the investment
properties, taking into account the most recent independent valuation. The management determines the
properties' value within a range of reasonable fair value Estimates. Level 2 fair value of investment properties
has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land and in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property. The most significant input into
this valuation approach is price per kanal and square feet.

Particulars of immovable investment property (i.e. land & building) are as follows:

The investment properties comprise of 167 kanal land and civil structure thereon having 250,720 Sq. feet
covered area situated at 32 K.m Multan Road. Sunder, Lahore.

Forced sale value of such free hold land and buildings on free hold land on June 30, 2021 was Rs. 702,652,500
(2020: Rs. 660,067,500) and Rs. 144,786,918 (2020: Rs. 144,786,918) respectively.

The title of land lies with the former name of the Company i.e. ICC Textiles Limited.
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances - secured but considered good 16.1 22,500 5,000
16.1 Advances to:
Employees 40,500 17,000
Less: Current portion (18,000) (12,000)
22,500 5,000
16.2 Advance to employees are secured against retirement benefits. Maximum aggregate amount in respect of loan
extended to employees is at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits 17.1 1,469,034 1,469,034
1,469,034 1,469,034
171 Security deposits mainly include security deposits for electricity connection.
STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 1,639,714 1,817,152
Spare parts 1,957,032 1,957,032
Packing material 6,515 17,921
Loose tools 659,512 658,472
4,262,773 4,450,577
TRADE DEBTS
Local - Unsecured but considered good 88,654 1,439,907
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances - unsecured but considered good:
to executives - against salaries and expenses 20.1 791,128 652,620
to employees - against salaries and expenses 222,044 105,044
to suppliers 167,564 167,563
1,180,736 925,227
1,180,736 925,227

20.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at end of any month was Rs.791,128 (2020: Rs. 652,620).

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 91,285 3,828
Export rebate receivable 568,331 568,331
Other receivables 21.1 14,318,302 -
14,977,918 572,159

21.1 The Company had executed Finance Facilities Settlement Agreement on May 28, 2015 with MCB and resultantly,
its one director had sold his property amounting to Rs. 140 million to MCB. This sale transaction also included a
buy back option for the director on the same price along with cost of funds (to be paid by the company to MCB)
within a period of three years of such agreement. Such sale proceeds had been advanced to the company as
long term loans by the director which also carried markup equivalent to cost of funds of MCB. These loan
proceeds from the director had been utilized for settlement of finance facilities extended to the company by
MCB. The cost of funds amounting to Rs. 22,318,302 due uptil May 2018 had also been paid by the company to
MCB during financial year ended June 2018, as at that time, the director had intention to exercise such buy-back
option.

However, later on, this buy - back option could not be exercised by the director and accordingly, cost of funds
already paid by the company to MCB in 2018 is now receivable from MCB which will be ultimately paid to the
director and the same has been included in accrued markup due towards directors. Out of total amount of Rs.
22.318 million, Rs. 8.0 million has already been received before year end while remaining amount has also been
received from MCB subsequent to year end.
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2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable - net 19,475,174 23,928,351
Sales tax refundable 823,206 8,954,318
20,298,380 32,882,669
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 59,340 669,266
Cash at banks:
Current accounts 23.1 1,785,556 81,990
Deposit accounts : 4,146 3,132
1,789,702 85,122
1,849,042 754,388
23.1 Deposit accounts earn interest at 5.50% (2020: 9.50% to 11.25%) per annum.
23.2 These bank accounts are in the previous name of the Company "ICC Textiles Limited".

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

These represent realizable value of following assets. The proceeds will be utilized as working capital and to reduce debt
burden in order to reduce finance cost of the Company, as per plan approved by Board of Directors. ( as mentioned in Note

1.2):
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Plant and equipment:
Sulzer looms related equipment, warping and sizing machines 24.1 4,327,200 8,297,710
24.1 Sulzer looms related equipment, warping
and sizing machine
Opening balance 8,297,710 11,638,675
Carrying amount of assets disposed
off during the year 14.1.2 (3,162,563) (1,408,220)
Decrease in revaluation surplus during the year (420,949) (1,354,531)
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale (386,998) (578,214)
Closing balance 4,327,200 8,297,710
24.2 The management expects sale of these assets within 12 months after reporting date.
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
REVENUE
Rental income 9,987,070 33,811,152
9,987,070 33,811,152
25.1 Rental income pertains to investment properties (Refer Note 15).
DIRECT COST
Salaries and other benefits 26.1 6,120,782 6,681,773
Fuel and power 1,903,506 2,000,123
Repairs and maintenance 26.2 502,315 2,561,243
Depreciation 14.1.1 311,684 1,107,808
8,838,287 12,350,947

26.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include post retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 847,030 (2020: Rs.

1,213.637).

26.2 Repair and maintenance includes NRV adjustment of spares and tools amounting to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 2,156,068).
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and other benefits
Travelling and conveyance

Rent, rates and taxes

Printing and stationery
Communication

Vehicles running and maintenance
Entertainment

Repairs and maintenance

Utility expenses

Legal and professional
Subscription

Insurance

Advertisement

Depreciation

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
27.1 17,332,710 19,949,075
66,460 79,571
3,971,044 3,492,706
184,645 209,833
414,141 491,910
1,005,166 1,363,832
520,003 487,622
363,546 543,629
809,572 728,814
1,000,000 1,067,500
161,658 231,173
68,369 156,499
43,135 56,000
14.1.1 352,266 403,477
26,292,715 29,261,641

27.1 Salaries and other benefits include post retirement benefits amounting to Rs.4,576,389 (2020

OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Loss on sale of non-current assets held for sale
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale
Loss on sale of spares

Others

28.1 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee
Half yearly review
Code of Corporate Governance review
Free float review
CDC certification
Tax representation and consultancy fee
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER INCOME

Trade creditors and other liabilities written back
Interest on saving accounts

Amortization of interest free loans

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

:Rs. 5,202,586).

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees

28.1 1,000,500 924,668
- 1,592,419
- 408,220
386,998 578,214
- 3,786,639
318,672 459,638
1,706,170 7,749,798
500,000 500,000
50,000 50,000
25,000 25,000
30,000 30,000
10,000 10,000
368,000 291,118
17,500 18,550
1,000,500 924,668
- 37,061,450
192 2,643
1,358,274 59,582,163
152,101 -
1,510,567 96,646,256




FINANCE COST 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Mark-up on:
- Financing from directors 19,320,022 51,806,027
- Financing from associated company 3,466,813 5,301,548
Unwinding of discount 38,173,140 22,178,144
Bank charges 15,474 12,410
60,975,449 79,298,129
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
TAXATION -
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 31.1 2,201,150 7,255,872
Prior Year tax Expense 825,000 -
Deferred tax income 6.2 (316,001) (1,358,901)
2,710,149 5,896,971
311 Provision for rental income has been made at the current rate of corporate tax after taking into account

allowable deductions / exemptions available under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
31.2 As the Company's taxable income fall under final tax regime and there are carry forward business losses, the
reconciliation of applicable and effective tax rate is not meaningful.

EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Earning / (Loss) per share is calculated by dividing profit / (loss) after tax for the period by weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year as follows:

| 2021 |1 2020 |
(Loss) / Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees) (38,925,133) (1,560,753)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number of shares) 30,001,120 30,001,120
(Loss) per share - Basic and diluted (1.30) (0.05)
32.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments

carrying options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

33.1 Credit Risk and concentration of credit risk
Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counter parties fail completely
to perform as contracted.

Credit risk arises principally from loans and advances, trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. Out of
total financial assets of Rs. 18.761 million (2020: Rs. 4.426 million), the financial assets that are subject to credit risk
amounted to Rs. 18.702 million (2020: Rs. 3.671 million).

The Company monitors the credit quality of the financial assets with reference to the historical performance of such assets
and available external credit ratings.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances and
investment held with some major counterparties at the date of statement of financial position.



Banks Rating Agency June 2021 June 2020
Short term Long term (Rupees) (Rupees)
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 6,635 6,635
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 59,514 59,514
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 4,637 4,637
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 1,648 1,648
United Bank Limited A 1+ AAA VIS 4,503 4,503
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 5,668 5,668
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 2,612 2,612
Total 85,217 85,217
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is: 2021 2020
( Rupees) ( Rupees)
Past due 1-30 days 11,027 1,385,707
Past due 31-150 days 34,981 -
Past due over 150 days 115,996 54,200
162,004 1,439,907

33.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
obligations when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company’s reputation. The Company uses different methods which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements.
Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a
reasonable period, including the servicing of financial obligation, with support from sponsors.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2021:

Carrying Less than one One to five More than
amount year years five years
( Rupees ) ( Rupees ) ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )
Long term financing from directors 575,529,060 - 575,529,060 -
Trade and other payables 102,753,430 102,753,430 - -
Accrued markup 169,969,442 169,969,442 - -
Short term borrowings 35,784,203 35,784,203 - -
Total 884,036,135 308,507,075 575,529,060 -
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2020:
Carrying Less than one One to five More than
amount year years five years
( Rupees ) ( Rupees ) ( Rupees ) ( Rupees )
Long term financing from directors 539,392,610 - 539,392,610
Trade and other payables 91,850,752 91,850,752 - -
Accrued markup 131,176,347 131,176,347 - -
Short term borrowings 36,247,863 36,247,863 - -

Total

798,667,572 259,274,962

539,392,610




33.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, markup rates and equity prices will
affect the Company's value of its financial instruments.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates.
The Company is not materially exposed to any currency risk.

b) Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the variable markup rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

2021 2020 June 2021 June 2020 |
Rupees

Financial liabilities

Long term financing from directors 9.53% 10.33% 197,000,000 65,000,000
Short term borrowings 9.78% 10.58% 35,784,203 36,247,863
Total 232,784,203 101,247,863
Financial assets

Cash at bank - deposit accounts 5.5% 9.50-11.25 % 4,146 3,132
Total 4,146 3,132

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain

constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.
Profit or loss 100 basis points

Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees
As at 30 June 2021
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities 927,842 (927,842)
As at 30 June 2020
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities 1,012,479 (1,012,479)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

c) Equity price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk as the Company does not hold
investments whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in fair value.



33.4 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets at amortised cost
June 2021 June 2020

(Rupees) (Rupees)
Financial assets
Loans and advances 1,035,672 762,664
Deposits 1,469,034 1,469,034
Trade debts 88,654 1,439,907
Other Receivable 14,318,302 -
Cash and bank balances 1,849,042 754,388
Total 18,760,704 4,425,993

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
June 2021 June 2020

(Rupees) (Rupees)

Financial liabilities

Long term financing from directors 575,529,060 539,392,610
Trade and other payables 102,753,430 91,850,752
Accrued markup/interest 169,969,442 131,176,347
Security deposits 2,024,482 2,363,923
Unclaimed dividend 1,662,656 1,662,656
Short term borrowings 35,784,203 36,247,863
Total 887,723,273 802,694,151

33.5 Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

33.6 Fair Value

Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
fair value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without

any intention requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

IFRS 13, 'Fair value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the categories as well as carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets according to there
respective category, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It
does not include fair value information for financial assets not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is reasonable
approximation of fair value:



Carrying amount ( Rupees) Fair Value
. Amortised Level | Level | Level
Particulars FVTPL Total Total
Cost 1 2 3
Rupees Rupees
June 30, 2021
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Non Current Assets
Long term deposits & advances 1,469,034 - 1,469,034 - - - -
Long term loans and advances 22,500 - 22,500 - - - -
Current Assets
Trade debts- unsecured 88,654 - 88,654 - - - -
Loans and advances 1,013,172 - 1,013,172 - - - -
Cash & bank balances 1,849,042 - 1,849,042 - - - -
Total 4,442,402 - 4,442,402 - - . N
June 30, 2020
Financial assets not measured at fair
value
Non Current Assets
Long term deposits & advances 1,469,034 - 1,469,034 - - - -
Long term loans and advances 5,000 - 5,000
Current Assets
Trade debts- unsecured 1,439,907 - 1,439,907 - - - -
Loans and advances 757,664 - 757,664 - - - -
Cash & bank balances 754,388 - 754,388 - - - -
Total 4,425,993 - 4,425,993 - - - -
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 102,753,430 91,850,752
Short term borrowings 35,784,203 36,247,863
Unclaimed dividend 1,662,656 1,662,656
Long term financing from directors 575,529,060 539,392,610
Accrued interest / mark-up 169,969,442 131,176,347
Security deposits 2,024,482 2,363,923

887,723,273

802,694,151




33.7 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a
strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, appropriation of amounts to capital reserves

or/and issue new shares.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets

and keeping in view future investment requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total
borrowings ("long term financing" and "short term borrowings" as shown in the statement of financial position). Total
capital comprises shareholders' equity as shown in the balance sheet under "share capital, reserves and surplus on

revaluation and net debt".
The salient information relating to capital risk management of the Company at year end were as follows:

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 611,313,263 575,640,473
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,849,042 754,388
Net debt 609,464,221 574,886,085
Total equity (including surplus on revaluation) 107,878,897 144,200,729
Total capital 717,343,118 719,086,814
Gearing ratio 84.96 79.95

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and their close family members, executives and major
shareholders of the Company. Remuneration and benefits to executives of the Company are in accordance with the terms
of their employment. Outstanding balances with related parties at reporting dates are disclosed in relevant notes.
Transactions with related parties during the year, other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as
follows:

Note 2021 2020

Nature of Transactions Rupees Rupees
Long term borrowing obtained from directors 7,321,584 2,812,360
Long term borrowing repaid to director 8,000,000 -
Interest on loan debited by ICC (Private) Limited 3,466,813 5,301,548
Reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of ICC (Private) Limited 7,982,060 9,583,389
Reimbursable expenses incurred by ICC (Private) Limited 32,313 392,142
Unwinding of discount on loans obtained from directors 38,173,140 22,178,144
Interest on loan obtained from directors 19,320,022 51,806,027
Present value adjustment on conversion of loan obtained from 1,358,274 59,582,163
directors

Adjustment of cost of funds on loan obtained from directors 21.1 22,318,302 -
34.1 Interest on short term borrowing is charged at the same rates which are charged by the banks to the associated

company.

34.2 ICC (Private) Limited is associated due to common directorship.
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2021 2020
Chief
Description Chief Executive . . |e. . .
. Directors Executives Executive Directors Executives
Officer )
Officer
Rupees
Managerial remuneration 5,816,328 - 1,600,000 5,816,328 - 2,302,413
House rent allowance 2,617,344 - 320,000 2,617,344 - 920,965
Other allowances - - 480,000 - - 230,241
8,433,672 - 2,400,000 8,433,672 - 3,453,620
No. of person(s) 1 6 1 1 6 2
35.1 The Chief executive officer is provided with the Company maintained car as per rules of the Company.
35.2 The Chief Executive Officer and executives are entitled for retirement benefits under un-funded gratuity scheme
(Note 4.1)
35.3 No meeting fee was paid to the directors for attending meetings of the Board.
35.4 Other directors of the Company have opted not to take any remuneration from the Company voluntarily.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) for the year before taxation
Adjustments for non cash income and expenses:

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale

(Gain) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &

non-current assets classified as held for sale
Amortization of interest free loans
Unwinding of discount
Changes in fair value of investment properties
Gratuity
Finance cost

Change in working capital:
Increase / (decrease ) in Current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Short term prepayments and other receivables
Sales tax refundable

Increase / (decrease ) in Current liablilities:

Trade and other payables
Security deposits

Increase / ( Decrease) in working capital
Net cash (used in) / from operations

June 2021 June 2020
Rupees Rupees
(36,214,984) 4,336,218

663,950 1,511,285
386,998 578,214
(152,101) 2,000,639
(1,358,274) (59,582,163)
38,173,140 22,178,144
(50,100,000) (2,539,325)
4,576,389 6,575,925
22,802,309 57,119,985
14,992,411 27,842,704
(21,222,573) 32,178,922
(187,804) (7,118,759)
(1,351,253) 835,589
255,509 208,617
14,405,759 (867,131)
(8,131,112) (831,469)|
4,991,099 (7,773,153)
10,902,678 (30,338,810)
(339,441) (3,392,440)
10,563,237 (33,731,250)
5,572,138 (25,958,097)
(15,650,435) 6,220,825




ICC INDUSTRIES LIMITED ( Formerly ICC Textiles Limited}
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021 - -
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a1

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
The Caompany has cne segmant i e. real estate. Earlier it had two reportable segments { f.e. real estate and testiles). Due to

discontinuaticn of textiles, now only sepment |5 of resl estate.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES | 2021 I 2020 1

Wumber of employees at the end of the year 30 34
32 i7

Average number of employees during the year
coviD - 18

Tha novel coronavirus (COVID-19) emerged and on March 23, 2020, the Government of the Punjab announced a temparary
lack down as @ measure to reduce the spread of the COVID-192 which was lifted subsequently in June 2020. Management
hes assessed the accounting Implications of such developments on these Tinancial statements. Due to such lzckdowns, faw
customers have vacated rented premises resulting Into decrease in security deposits and revenue, Further, inflztionary and
incremental trend being observed in veluation of investment properties over past few years was not observed during the

VEAar.
GENERAL

- Figures in thage financial statements have been rounded ofT to the nearest rupee.
Correspanding figures have been re-arranged and / or reclassified, where ever considered necessary, for the purpose of
better presentation of the financizl statements. However, no significant reclassification has been made in these finzncial

statements.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statemernts have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on
Cctober 08, 2021, 2

HA

e __j/ = M - Zﬂ;%if‘

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIGER DIRECTOR JCHI!F FINAMCIAL OFFICER




FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(f)]
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2021

No. of Shareholding Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held

171 1 100 12,920
981 101 500 458,185
116 501 1.000 114,047
140 1,001 5,000 414,613
46 5,001 10,000 369,001
22 10,001 15,000 273,188
1 15,001 20,000 189,737
8 20,001 25,000 176,600

3 25,001 30.000 81,500

3 35.001 40.000 109,000

3 45,001 50,000 147,000

1 90,001 95.000 82,000

1 95,001 100.000 99,500

1 105,001 110,000 110,000

1 115,001 120,000 119,500

1 120,001 125,000 125,000

5 125,001 130,000 633,612

1 130,001 135,000 130,500

1 135,001 140,000 139,900

1 155,001 160,000 158,900

1 165,001 170,000 168,950
2 175,001 180,000 354,720

1 190,001 195,000 194,500

1 195,001 200,000 200,000

1 230,001 235,000 235,000

2 235,001 240,000 473,000

1 270,001 275,000 271,120

1 2,190,001 2,185,000 2,194,788

1 4,455,001 4,450,000 4457918

1 7,710,001 7,715,000 7,714,933

1 9,780,001 9,765,000 9,781,379

1,530 30,001,120




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
FORM-34 AS ON JUNE 30, 2021

Categories of Sharehol

1

[

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their
spouse and minor children

Mr. Javaid Shafiq Siddiqi

Mr. Javaid Shafig Siddigi (CDC)
Mr. Pervaiz Shafig Siddigi {CL2C)
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid

Mrs, Fauzia Javaid (CDC)

fr, Salman Javaid Siddigi (CDC)
Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi (CDC)
Mr. Arif Mahmuod Khan

Mr. Maveed Hashim Rizvi

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

NIT & ICP
lvestment Corp. of Makistan

Mublic Sector Compani

11

Banks Development Financial Institutions and Non Banking
Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies

Modaraha and Mutual Fands
Total

General Public
a. Local
Ix. Foreign

Other { to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies
Pension Funds
hers
Total

Grand Total

Sharcholders holding 10%: or more voting interest
Mr. Javaid S. Siddigi
Mr Pervaiz 5. Siddiqi
Total

Sharcholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. Javaid 8. Siddigi
Mr. Pervaiz 5, Siddigi
Mrs, Fauzia Javaid
Total

Shares held

Percentape

4457918 14.80
9,781,379 32.60
7,714,933 2372
179,300 (.60
2,194,788 132
L.ooo (.00

1,000 0.00

] 0.00

0 0.00
24,350,318 81.10
1,400 0.00
5,092 0.02

[ 58,900 0.53

i LU

163,992 0.55
5,477,707 18.25
12,101 0.04
15,073 0.05

529 0.00

27,703 0.09
30,001,120 100.00
14,239,297 4746
7,714,933 25.72
21,954,230 73.18
14,239,297 47.46
7,714,933 2592
2,374,088 791
24,328,318 §1.09




FORM OF PROXY

The Corpany Seoretary
1CC Indusiries Lid,
242-A, Anand Foad
Upper Ball, Lahore

IrWe
of

LIMITED and holder of

Register Folin Wi

. and Sub Account Mo,

~ being a member of 1CC INDUSTRIES

Dedinary Shares as por share

Merebyappoint

of

or failing him

of

as myfour proxy to vole for mefus and myfour behalf al the Annual General Meeling ol the Company
o be held ar ite Repisiared OfMice 242-A, Anand Road, Upper Mall, Lahore on Thursday. the (_}r.lutlcr
I8, 2021 at 11E30 a.m. and at every adjournment thereof.

Signed this

WITHNESSES

1. Signature:
Mame:
Address:

Signalure;
Mame:
Address:

CNIC ar
Passport Mo

Bote 3

before the mesting, duly completed in all respects

________________________________ Day of o Ocrober . A2L
-------------------------------------------- Sigrature

Proxies, in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours

COC shareholders and their Prosies are requested 1o atlach an altesled photecopy ol their
Mational [dentity Card or Passpart with the proxy form before subamission to the Company,
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